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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Rajyalakshmi Healthcare Private Limited

Report on the Aundit of the IND AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Rajyalakshmi Healthcare Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2023, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2023, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements,

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the director’s report, but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required io report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended . This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an anditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

»  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
andit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
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concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

The Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022, included in these
Ind AS financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified
opinion on those statements on May 18, 2022,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 27 to this report;

(g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2023;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial position on in
its Ind AS financial statements-Refer note 25 to the Ind AS financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foresecable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, , no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, , no funds
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on hehalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a} and (b) contain any material
misstatement.
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v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.
vi. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
Company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

D\Lm‘;}/ . \/]

per Navneet Rai Kabra
Partner

Membership Number: 102328
UDIN:2.2)0222€ BGSBMT3E5 7
Place of Signature: Hyderabad

Date: May 16, 2023
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Annexure 1’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Rajyalakshmi Healthcare Private Limited ("the Company')

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state that:

(1)

(i)

(iii)

a)

b)

c)

d)

o

)

b)

b)

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangibles assets.

All Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by the
management during the year but there is a regular programme of verification which,
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company
and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i}¢) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
use assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2023,

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by
the management is appropriate. There were no discrepancies of 10% or more in
aggregate for each class of inventory.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores
in aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on
the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans,
stood guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company

During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided
security and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liahility Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(iv)

\2

(vi)

(vii)

c)

d)

a)

b)

The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnetships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(iii}{d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions
of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning o[f sections 73 to 76 of the
Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant
to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the medical and healthcare
setvices, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have
been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the

same,

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess
and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanations
given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable,

The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-
tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and
other statutory dues have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of | Nature of | Amount Period to which | Fornm where
the statute | the dues Demanded | the amount | the dispute is
(in Mn) relates (Financial | pending
Year)

Commissionet

neome St Income tax 1.76 | 2017-18 of Income-Tax
act, 1961
(appeals)
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(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded
in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as
income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

a)

b)

<)

d)

b)

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence,
the requirement to report on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

On an overall examination of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company,
no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by
the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clanse 3(ix}{f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer
/ further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report
on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has complied with provisions of sections 42 of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of the private placement of optionally convertible redeemable
preference shares (OCRPS) during the year. The funds raised, have been used for
the purposes for which the funds were raised. The Company has not made any
preferential allotment of shares /fully or partially or optionally convertible
debentures during the year and hence provisions of sections 62 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

No fraud/ material fraud by the Company or no fraud / material fraud on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 has been filed by cost auditor, secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT —
4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.
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(x1i

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

{xvi)

a) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

b) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

¢) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disciosed in the notes to the ind
AS financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The
provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly the
requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177
of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

a) The Company has implemented internal audit system on a voluntary basis which is
commensurate with the size of the Company and nature of its business though it is
not required to have an internal audit system under Section 138 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for
the period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors ot persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934)
are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made
by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

The previous statutory auditors of the Company have resigned during the year and we
have taken into consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing
auditors.
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(xix)

(xx}

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 37 to the Ind AS financial statements,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the Ind AS financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

a) Inrespect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required

to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act),
in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This
matter has been disclosed in note 32to the Ind AS financial statements.

b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be

transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6} of section
135 of Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 32 to the Ind AS financial
statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Ndhﬂu}“ﬁ:ﬂ\ L—]

per Navneet Rai Kabra

Partner

Membership Number: 102328
UDIN: 23 102324 RBLS E’MIBSS-'.C

Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: May 16, 2023
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCTAL STATEMENTS OF RAJYALAKSHMI HEALTHCARE PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Rajyalakshmi
Healthcare Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2023] in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI™).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Jjudgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
d procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
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airly re‘ﬁect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financiai conirois with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on [the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

O\)ﬂm«%‘f@ —]

per Navneet Rai Kabra /
Partner

Membership Number: 102328
UDIN: 23 (02328 RAS BMT.?:SS'?
Place of Signature: Hyderabad

Date: May 16, 2023
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Rajyalakshmi Healthcare Private Limited

CIN: USS100FG2015PTC059232

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise staled)

Notes As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS '
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 764.76 819,78
Capilal work-in-progress 4 24.58 -
Intangible assets 3 288 30
Right-of-use assets X 26 : 37553 403.70
Financial assets y
(i} Other financial assets 5 12.65 36.37
Non-current tax assets (net) 7 46.43 62.78
Deferred tax assets (net) s 45.32 73.24
Other non-current assets 6 20.24 -
Total non-curreat assets 1,292.39 1,398.88
Current assets
Inventories 3 3166 27.85
Financial assets
{0} Trade receivables 9 54.44 3395
{it) Cash and cash equivalents 10 2219 24.03
(iii) Other financial assets 5 7.79 4.55
Other current assets 6 10.18 [6.35
Total current assets 126.26 106.73
Total assets 1.418.65 1.505.61
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 11 90.10 90.10
Instruments entirely equity in nature 11 600.00 -
Other equity 12 7.26 (81.52)
Total equity . 697.36 3.58
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 50.00 730.15
(i1} Lease tabilities 26 506.04 50921
Provisions 14 4.58 322
Total non-current linbilities 560.62 1,242.58
Current labhilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities 26 2.89 0.57
(ii} Trade payables ts
{a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises;
and 593 -
S:j:::::r;fmg dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 114.14 17472
(iii) Other financial liabilities 16 21.43 64,73
Provisions 14 4,09 224
Other current liabilities 17 12.19 12.19
Total curcent Liabilities 160.67 254,45
Total equity and liabilities 1.418.65 1,505.61
Summary of significant uccounting policies ! 21
The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even dated
For 8.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of
Chartered Accountants Rajynlakshmi Fealthcare Private Limited }/

ICAI Finm Registration No.: 101049W/ E300004

0_[4mJ’€QJ*/')

per Navneet Rai Kabra rsh Anmapareddy Chanlfrasekar Ramamurthy
Partner Director Director
Membership No: 102328 DIN : 07870436 DiIN : 09393575

G Dperdra Koo

Nagendra K Gopavarapu
Chief Financtal Officer

Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date; 16 May 2023 Date: 16 May 2023




Rajyalakshmi Healthcare Private Limited

CIN: USSTOTG2015PTC099232

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023 *

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Noies For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 3 March 2022

Income
Income from operations 1% 1,394.77 1,516.91
Other income 19 6.51 2291
Totel income LAM. 2R 1,539.82
Expenses
Purchase of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments 340.81 385.43
Increase in inventoriss of medical consumables, drugs and surgical ;
R L 20 (3.81) (6.41)
Employee benefits expense 21 141.21 139.66
Finance costs 22 92.59 130.80
Depreciation and amortisation 23 11111 101.96
Other expenses 24 603,98 557.13
Total expenses 128589 1,308.57
Profit before tax 115.39 231.25
Tax expenses ’

- Deferred tax charge 35 27.58 59.88
Total tax expense 27.58 59.88
Profit for the year (A) 87.81 171.38
Other comprebensive income
Hems thiat will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss

- Re-measurement income on defined benefit plans 1.30 10.15
= Income tax effect (0.33) {2.60%
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (B) 0,97 7.55
Total comprehensive income for the year (A+R) 88.78 178.93
Eamings per share (face value of share Rs. 10 each) 29
- Basic 915 19.02

- Diluted 330 19.02

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes referred to above fonm an integral part of the financial statements,

As per our report of even dated
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of
Chartered Accountants Rajyalakshmi Healtheare Private Limited }//
ICAI Firm Registration Ne.: 101049W/ E300004 z ; Nig#
3 K «
Ndl wod o, g %
per Navneet Rai Kabra i AMarsh Annapareddy Chanllrasekar Ramamurthy
Parmer Director Director
Membership No: 102328 DIN : 07870436 DIN : 09393575

Chief Finaneial Officer

Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16 May 2023 Date: 16 May 2023




Rajyalatishinil Healthicare Private Limited
CIN: USSIMTG2015PTC099232
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023

{All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share daia or unless otherwise stated)

L Cash flows from operating activities:

Profit before tax

Adjustments for operating activities:

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Liabilities no longer required written back

Finance cost

Interest income on security deposits

Provision for expected credit loss for trade receivables (net of bad debts)
Gain on cancellation of lepse *
Interest income on income tax refund

Interest income on fixed deposits

Operating cash flows before working capital changes

Adjustments for:

{Increase) / decrease in trade receivables

Increase in inventories

Decrease in other financials assets and other 2s50is

(Decrease) / increase in trade payables, financial liabilities, provisions and
other liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid, net of refunds

Net cash generated from operating activities

IL Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of propenty, plant and equipment and intangibie assets
Redempsion / (investment) in bank deposits

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

III. Cash Mlows from financing activities

Proceeds from long-term bomrowings

Repayment of long-term borrowings

Repayment of shoni-term borrowings (net) -
Proceeds from issue of preference shares

Payment of lease liabilities

Interest paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
115.39 23125
1t 101.96
(1.38) (19.83)
92.59 130.80
(0.73) (0.68)
028 0.26
- {0.65)
(3.85) -
{0.36) {1.30)
313.05 441.81
(20.77) 40.81
(3.21) {6.41)
.73 2.57
(38.56) 45.08
251.66 523.86
20.20 {41.84)
A 271.86 482,02
(87.67 (72.44)
2553 (0.98)
0.46 1.30
B {61.68) (72.12)
67.50 316,52
{747.65) (602.12)
- {66.31)
600.00 <
(54.11) (50.92)
(77.75) (93.09)
C (212.01) (495.91)
A+B+C (1.84) {(86.01)
24.03 110.04
22.19 4.03

Note:

a) The statement of cash flows has besn prepared under the “Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian accounting Standard (Ind 7)-Statement of cash flows:

b) Cash and cash equivalents comprises of:

Cish on hand

Balance with banks:

- in current accounts

- in deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 months or less)
Cheques on hand

Totsl

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statemerits,

-

As per our repori of even dated

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101049W/ E300004

per Navueet Rai Kabra
Pariner
Membership No: 102328

Place; Hyderabad
Date: 16 May 2023

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 M March 2022

0.99 102

2095 2297

02% =
- .04
1219 24.03
For and on behalf of the Board of

alakshmi Healtheare Private Limited

DIN : 07870436

G- Dgurd-a Kinot
Nagendra K Gopavarapu

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Hyderabad
Dale: 16 May 2023

e
=

_ -L\r‘*’i{
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Direcior
DIN : 09393575
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Rajyalekshmi Healthcare Private Limited

CIN: US5100TG2015PTC099232

Statement of changes in ¢quity for the year ended 31 March 2023

{All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

a} Equity share capital B
Equity shares of Rs.10 each issued, subseribed and fully paid

No of Shares

Amount

As at 1 April 2021

Add: Shares issued during the year
As at 31 March 2022

Add: Shares issued during the year
As at 31 March 2023

9,010,000

90.10

9,010,000

90,10

9.010,000

90.10

b) Instruments entirely equity in aatore
0.01% optionslly convertible redeemsble prefereace shares of Rs,10 each, issued, subseribed and
fully paid-up

No of Sharea

Amount

As atl April 2021

Add: Shaves issued during the year
As at 31 March 2022

Add: Shares issved during the year
As at 31 March 2023

60,000,000

600,00

60,000,000

600.00

c) Other Equity

Reserves and surplus

Particulers Retnined esrnings

Other Comprehensive
Income

Total of other equity

Aswt 1 April 2021 (261.83)
Profit for the year . 171,38
Other comprehensive income for the year

1.38

755

(260.45)
171.38
755

Ag at 3 March 2022 90.45)
Profit for the year 87.8]
Other comprehensive income for the year =

893

0.97

(81.52)
87.81
0.97

As at 31 March 2023 (2.64)

5.0

1.26 |

The accompanying notes referred to above form en integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even dated

For S.R. Batlibol & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101049W/ E300004

1 0 Vi
Nkmpc&%ﬂmmt Rni/k"a;':\
Partner

Membership No: 102328

Adwrsh Annepareddy
Director

DIN : 07870436

For and on behalf of the Board of
Rajyalakshmi Healthcare Private Limited

"

kndrasehr Ramamurthy

Director
DIN : 09393575

Place: Hyderabad
Daie: 16 May 2023

A Nagen { Gopavarapu

\
B :
FAgarwal
Chief Financial Officer Campany Secretary

M ho: 39473

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16 May 2023
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Rajyalakshmi Heatthoore Private Limited

CIN: US5106TG20215FTC099232

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

5 Otber financial assets (st amortised cost)
{Unsecured, considered good) .

{a) Nom-curvent
Deposits with banks having maturity more than 12 months®
Security deposits
Interest accrved on bank deposits

Total

* Includes deposits placed with banks are restrictive in nature as it penains to bank guarantee.

(b) Current
Secunity deposits
Contract assets (Unbilled revenue) (refer note 36)

Total

6 Other asseis
{Unsecured, considered good)

(@) Noo-current
Capital advances
Total
&) Current -
Prepuid expenses
Advence to suppliers
Advances to employees

Total
7 Non-curreut iax, assets (net)

Advance tax (net of provision for axation)
Total

83 Inveatorfes
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)

Medical consumables, drugs and surgical instrumenis
Total

Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
- 2553
12.65 10.74
= 0.10
165 36.37
0.30 -
749 4.55
7.79 4.55
20.24 -
20.24 -
253 230
713 13.86
047 0.19
10.18 16.35
46.43 6278
46.43 6178
IL.56 27.85
31.66 27.85




Rajyalakshmi Healtheare Private Limited

CIN: U85100TG201 SPTC099232

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share date or uniess otherwise stated)

As ai As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

9 Trade receivables (amortised cost)

(Unsecured)

Considered good - Unsecured 67.43 4792
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (12.99) (13.97)
Total 54.44 33.95

No trade or other receivable are due from directors o other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person, nor any trade or other receivable are due
from firms or private compantes respectively in which any director is a pariner, a director or 8 member.
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally on terms of 30 w0 90 days.

As at 31 March 2023

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Lessthané |6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years | More than 3 years Total
muenthy

27.05 21.63 528 10.48 299 - 67.43

Current but not

Particulars
due

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables-
idstod god

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables-

significant increase in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables-

credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade receivables-

considered good

(v) Disputed Trade receivables-

significant increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade receivables-

credit impaired

Totsl 67.43

Less + Allowance for expected credit loss {12.99)

Balance at the end of the year T 534d

As at 31 March 2022

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Lessthan 6 |6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2.3 years | More than J years Total
months

23.55 1041 | | 9.60 437 - - 47.92

Current buot not

Particulars due

(1) Undisputed Trade receivables —
considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables —
which have significant increase in 5 - & - = [ =
credit rigk

(ii1) Undisputed Trade Receivables
—credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables—
considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables —
which have significant increase in ~ = = = z I -
credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables —
credit impaired

Toial 47.92
Less : Allowance for expected credit loss {13.97)
Balamce ot the end of the year T 3395

' a\\
) I|| )

y £
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Rajyalakshmi Healthcare Private Limited

CIN: Us5100TG2015PTCO992352

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Asat As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2022
10 Cash and cush equivalents
Cash on hand 0,99 1.02
Balances with banks
= in current accounts 20.95 2297
- in deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 months or less) 0.25 -
Cheques on hand = 0.04
Total 2219 24.03
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:
Particulars 01 April 2022 Cash flows Others 31 March 2023
Current and Non-current lease linbilities 509.78 (54.11) 5326 508,93
Long term borrowings 730.15 (680.15) - 50,00
Total liabilitics from financing activities 1,239.93 (734.26) 53.26 558,93
Particulars 1 April 2021 (Cash flows Dithere 31 Mareh 2022
Current and Non-cwrent lease ligbilities 515.53 (50.92) 4517 509.78
Long term borrowings (including current maturities) 1,082.05 (351.90) - 730.15
Total liabilities from financing activities 1,597.58 (402.82) 45.17 1,239.93

The ‘Other’ column includes lease liabilities to current due to the pessage of lime and the effect of accrued interest on lease liabilities. Further, this also includes termination

of lease linbilities of Rs. 15.81 in the previous year.




Rajyalaksbmi Healtheare Private Limited

CIN: USS100TG2015PTC09232

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 .

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
11
11(a) Equity share capital
Authorised Equity shares
10,000,000 (31 March 2022: 10,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 100.00 100,00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
9,010,000 (31 March 2022: 90,710,000} equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 90.10 90.10
910 90,10
{i} Reconciliation of pumber of equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
At the commencement of the year 9,010,000 490.10 9,010,000 90.10
Add: Shares issued during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding st the end of the year 9,010,000 90,10 9,010,000 96.10

.

(i} Rights, preferences and restrictions attached o equity shares of Rs, 10 each, fully paid up:
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs, 10/ each. Each equity share holder is entitled to one vote per equity share held. In the event of
liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribation of all preferential amounts. The

distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(iii) Particolars of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid op

As at J1 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Name of the shareholder No. of shares % Holding No. of shares % Holding
Sarvejana Healthcare Privaie Limited (including 1 share held by a nominee shareholder) 9,010,000 100.00% 9,010,000 100.00%
Total 9,010,000 100.00% 9,010,000 100 %%

(i¥) Shares of the Company held by holding company

As at 31 March 2623 As at 31 March 2022
Name of the shareholder No, of shares % Holding No. of shares % Holding
Sarvejana Healthcare Private Limited (including 1 share held by a nominee shareholder) 9,010,000 100.00% 9,010,000 100.00%
Total 9,010,000 100.00% 9,010,000 100.00%

(v} The Company has not issued bonus shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting period.
{vi) The Company has not bought back any shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting period.

(vii) Details of shares held by Promoters*
As at 31 March 2023

"No.of shares at Change during 0 07 shares % ch duri
S. No. Particolars Promoter name beginning of the £ ® atendofthe % of totsl shares LA L
the year the year
year year
i E:il:llly shares of Rs. 10 each fully El;z:lna Healthcare Private 9,010,000 i 9,010,000 100.00% 0.00%
Total 9,010,000 - 9,010,000 100.00%
As at 31 March 2022
No of shares at No of shares . o
S. No. Particulars Promoter name beginning of the Change during atend of the % of total shares O
the year the year
Year Year
1 :;"i';“’ Sies ol T each illy us‘."m“i?e;"“ igalihgare Rirvaie 9,010,000 - 9,010,000 100.00% 0.00%
Total 9,010,000 - 9,010,000 100.00%

* Promoters are as per the annual return filed by the Company.




Rajyalakshmi Henlthcare Private Limited

CIN: US5100TG2015PTC099232

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
3 March 2023 31 March 2022

11(k) Instruments entirely equity in nature

Authorised

68,000,000 (31 March 2022: Nil) 0.01% optionally convertible redeemable preference shares of Rs. 10 each 680,00 5

Issued, subscribed nad paid-up

60,000,000 (31 March 2022: Nil) 0.01% optionally convertible redeemable preference shares of Rs.10 each, fully paid up 600.00 3
600,043 =

»

(i) R iliation of ber of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
At the commencement of the year - - - -
Add: Shares issued during the year 60,000,000 600.00 - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 60,000,000 600,00 - -

(ii) Rigbts, preferences and restrictions atinched o preference shares:

OCRFS were issued at par on 08 Noverber 2022 to its parent company, Sarvejana Healthcare Private Limited, OCRPS carry & dividend rate of 0.01% p.a. OCRPS have a
prefecential right of dividend over equity shareholders. Following are the terms and conditions:

i. The OCRPS can be converted into 60,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each at par (i.e. each OCRPS shall be converted into 60,000,000 Equity Share of Rs. 10 each at par
(i.e. each OCRPS shall be converted inta 1 (One) Equity Share) of the Company at any time afier the 5th year but before 20th year from the date of issvance and allotment of
OCRPS at the sole option of the Company.

ii. The OCRPS will be redeemable (in multiple tranches or single tranche) at the option of the Company by way of the following : Conversion of OCRPS after Sth year but
before the end of 20th year from the date of issuance or At any point of time before 20th year from the date of issuance, in multiple tranchies or single tranches, based on the
valuation certificate from the Chartered Accountant or Merchant Banker as the case may be.

«(iii} Particulars of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares

As at M March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Name of the shareholder No. of shares % Holding No. of shares % Holding
Sarvejana Healthcare Private Limited , 60,000,000 ' 100,00% - 0.00%
Taotal ' 640,000, NH) 100004 - 0.00%%
(iv) Shares of the Company held by holding company
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Name of the shareholder No, of shares Y Holding No. of shares % Holding
Sarvejana Healthcare Private Limited 60,000,000 100.00% - 0.00%
Total 650,000,000 100.00% - 0.00%
12 (Hher equity
{i) Retained earniogs (refer below note)
Balance as per last financial statements (90.45) {261.83)
Add: Profit for the year 87.81 171.38
Closing balance (2.64) {90.45)
(i} Other Comprehensive Income (OCDH
Balance as per last financial statements 893 1.38
Add: Other comprehensive income 0.97 7.55
Closing balance 9.9¢ 8.93
7.26 (81.52)
Note:
Retained earnings are the profits/losses (net of appropriations) of the company eamed till date, including items of other comprehensive income.
13 Borrowings (at amortised cost)

Non-cerrent borrowings (Unsecured)
Loan form related party* (refer note 28) 50,00 730.15

Total nos-current borrowings 50,00 730,15

*The unsecured loan from related party represents loan obtained from Sarvejana Healthcare Private Limited (Holding Company). The loan carries an interest rate of 7.5% per
annum {31 March 2022: 9.5% per annum}.

iy -




Rajyalakshmi Healthcare Private Limited
CIN: USS100TG2015PTC099232

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

14

(@)

{b)

15

16

17

Provisions
Provisions for employee benefits

Long-term provisions
Provision for gratuity (refer note 27)

Total

Short term provisions
Provision for Compensated Absences

Total
Trade payables (at amortised cost)

Trade payables

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 31)
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Total

The above includes payable to related party. For details refer note 28
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-90 dgy terms.

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule a3 on 31 March 2023

Asat
31 March 2023

As at

31 March 2022

458

322

4.58

3.22

4.09

2.24

4.09

2.24

593
114.14

174.72

120.07

174.72

Particulars

Current but not
due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

<1 year

1-2 years

2-3 vears

More than 3 years

Total

(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises

(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises

(iii) Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises

(iv) Disputed dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

0.47

51.69

5.46

5.2

223

3.00

593

114.14

Balance at the end of the year

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule as on 31 March 2022

120.07

Particulars

Current but not
due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

< 1 vear

1-2 years

2-3 yeary

Mare than 3 vears

Total

(i) Total outstanding ducs of micro enterprises and
small enterprises

(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises

(iii) Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises

(iv) Disputed dues of creditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises

26.78

76.42

5.46

1.71

4.35

174.72

Balance at the end of the year
Other fiuancial linbilities (at amortised cost)

Current

Interest accrued bui not dve on borrowings
Employee related liabilities

Creditors for capital goods

Toisal
Other liabilities

Current
Contract liabilities {refer note 36)
Statutory dues payable

Total

18.13
325

174.72

3842
2.00
1831

21.43

64,73

5.29
6.90

12.19
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18

19

20

21

22

Income from operations
Income from contract with customers
Income from medical and healtbeare services (Refer note 36)

Income from hospital services
Income from pharmacy

Total

Other operating income
Other Hospital Income

Tota) income from operations
Other income

Interest income on:

- fixed deposiis with banks

- income {ax refunds

= security deposit

Liabilities no longer required written back
Miscellaneous income

Gain on cancellation of lease

Total
Increase in inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instrumeais

Opening stock
Less: Closing stock

Total
Employee benefits expense

Salories, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 27)
StafT welfare expenses

Tatal
Finance cosis

Intesest on related party loan
Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer note 26)

Total
Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note no 3)
Amontisation of intangible assets (refer noie no 3)
Amortization of Right-of-use assets (refer note no 26)

Total

For the year ended For the year ¢nded
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
889.24 914.76
504.46 602.15
1,393.70 1,516.91
1.07 -
1.07 -
1,394.77 1,516.91
036 1.30
385 -
073 0.68
1.38 19.83
0.19 045
- 0.65
6.51 2291
27.85 2144
(31.66} (27.85)
{3.81) (6.41)
128.19 12524
10.30 13.95
272 0.47
141.21 130.66
39.33 76.95
5326 53.85
9259 130.40
8226 72.81
0.68 020
2817 28.95
111.11 101.96
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For the year exded For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
24 Other expenses

Consultuncy charges . 315.48 290.36
Housekeeping and security service charges - 65.12 58.28
Power and fuel 30.86 26.86
Catering and patient welfare expenses 16,93 16.84
Rent {refer note 26) 17.32 14.85
Tests and investigations 90,12 105.16
Repairs snd maintenance expenses

- Medical equipment 15.50 1521

- Others 529 4,30
Printing and stationery 3.24 329
Payment to suditor (Refer Note Below) 0.50 0.75
Legal and professional charges 11.3¢ 65.04
Rates and taxes 7 1.33. .
Travel and conveyance expenses 1.56 047
Advertisement and publicity 10.82 202
Communication experses 1.46 1.81
Provision for expected credit loss for trade receivables (net of bad debis) 028 0.26
Insurance 1.33 0.88
Contributions towsrds Corporale Social Responsibility (refer note 32) 1.38 -
Bank charges 5.81 7.31
Miscellancous expenses 1.36 .11

603.98 557,13
Total
|

Note: Payment te anditors (excluding applicable taxes) -
Statutory sudit fee 0.90 0.60
Other services - 0.15

0.90 0.75
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23 Coniingent linbilities and commitments

(a) Contingent linbilities

For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

i) Income tax matter in dispute 175 1.75

The Company disputed the demond raised by income tax suthorities for the assessment year 2018-19 (31 March 2022: 2018-19) which are pending at
Commissioner of Income Tax {Appeals). The Company is confident thei these appeals will be decided in its favour.

ii) On 28 February 2019, the Supreme Court of India issued a judgement which provided firther guidance for companies in determining which componenis of their
employes's compensation are subject to statutory withholding obligations, and maiching employer contribution obligations, for Provident Fund coniributions
under Indian law. There are interpretative issues velating to the retrospective applicability of the judgement. However, from the date of order, the Company has
complied with the aforessid Supreme court's judgement. The Company will evaluate the same and update its position for earlier years, if any on réceiving further
clerity on the subject.

Notes:
i. Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Company to estimate the tnmmgs of the cash flow, if any, in respect of the above as it is
determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with vmgus forumsfauthorities.

ii, The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent
liabitities where applicable in its standalons financial stalements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceeding to have a materially adverse effect on
its financial position.

(b) Commitments

For the year ended  For the year ended
partientant 31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
I} Capital commitment
i) Estimated amouni of coniracts remaining to be excouted on capital account and not provided for (met of 12,58
advances) . ”

l ".."'__
| [

¢ _
{ < (HYDERAB.ED

PR




Rajyalakshmi Healtheare Private Limited

CIN: US5100TG2015PTC099232

Nates to the standalone financial statemenis for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated}

26

Lease

Operating and Finance leases in the capacity of lessee

The Company has lease contracts for building used in its operations. Lease of building have lease term of 20 years. The Company’s obligations under its leases are

secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets.

Leases of buildings with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of land with low valve, The Company applies the “short-term lease * and ‘lease of low-value

assets” recognition exemptions for these leases.

The Company has several lease contracts that include exiension and termination options. These options are negotiated by management to provide flexibility in
managing the leased-asset portfolio and atign with the Company’s business needs. Management exercises significant judgement in determining whether these

extension and termination options are reasonably certaitt to be exercised,

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars Building

As at I April 2021 440.63
Amortization expense 2895
Deletion 8.03
As at 31 March 2022 403.70
Amortization expense 28.17
As at 31 March 2013 375.53

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

Openiog balance
Accretion of interest
Deletions

Payments

Closing balance
Current
Non-current

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 10,50% (31 March 2022: 10.50%), with maturity between 2022-2036,

N

The following are the amounts rezognised in the statement of profit ot loss:

Amortization expense of right-of-use assets

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Expense relating to short-term leases and low-value assets (included in other expenses)
Total amount recognised in profit or loss

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of Rs. 71.43 in 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: Rs. 65.77).

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of lease labilities:

Within less than one year
Between one and five years
Afier more than five years
Total

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
509,78 515.53
53.26 53.85
- (3.68)
{54.11) {50.92)
505,93 500.78
2.89 0.57
506.03 509.21
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
28.17 2895
53.26 53.85
17.32 14.85
98.75 97.65
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
56.19 54.11
243.51 23648
708.75 771.97
1,008.45 1,062.56
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U]

Employee benefiis

Defined benefit plan .

The Company operale post-employment defined benefit plan that provides Tor gratuity. The Company accrues gratuity as per the provisions of the payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972 as applicable 8s at the balance sheet date. The gratuity plan entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five years of continudus services, to receive one-
half month's salary for each year of completed services at the time of reticement/exit. The gratuity fund is administered by trust formed for this purpose and is managed
by Life Insurance Corporation of India. The Company's obligation in respect of gratvity plan, which is a defined benefit plan is provided for based on actuarial
valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method,

A Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the
Company’s siandalone financial statements as at the balance sheet date:

For the year ended  For the year ended

Rrticeia 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Defined benefit obligations 6.86 532
Foir value of plan assets 228 210
Net defined benefit obligations 458 kv
Now-cument 4.58 322
Current - -

B Reconciliation of net defined benefit obligation
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the ¢losing balances for net defined benefit obligation, plan assets and its cotnponents.

i)  Reconciliation of present valoe of defined benefit obligation

Particilars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Defined benefit obligation as at beginning of the year 532 9,14
Benefits paid (0.18) (0.43)
Current service cost 1.95 6.15
Interest cost 0.3 0.56
Impagt of liability assumed or (settled)® 0.78 =
Actuarial losses/{gains) recognised in other comprehensive income
- Changes in financial assumplions (0.49) (1.91)
- experience adjustments (0.83) 4.13)
- demographic assumptions - (4.06)
Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 6.86 532
* On account of business combination of inter group transfer
if) Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets
. For the year ended  For the year ended
FRLFERNGS 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Plan assets at beginning of the year 210 -
Contributions paid inlo the plan o 2.49
Interest income 0.17 -
Benefits paid 0.1%) (0.43)
Return on plan assets {0.03) 0.04
Plan assets at end of the year 228 2,10
C i) Exy recognised in the statemeat of profit and loas
" For the year ended For the year ended
ticul
- o i 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current service cost 2,73 6.15
Interest on net defined benefit obligation 0.14 0.56
Net gratuity cost, included in ‘employee benefits expense’ 2.87 6.71
C i) Re-measurements recognised in other comprehensive income (OCH)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particul
sty 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Actuarial gain/{loss) on net defined benefit obligati (1.30) (10.15)
D Plan agssets
Plan assets comprises of the following:
i Forthe year ended  For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Fund managed by Insurer 228 2.10
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(i}

(iii)

E  Defined benefit obligation
i} Actuarial assumptions

The following are the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting dete (exp d us weighted ges):
Principal actuarial assumptions Ko ;:1{:::: ;:?3' For;lln;{::: ;g;‘g
Discount rate 7.30% 6.25%
Salary lation rate 8.00% 8.00%
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1st following year 1.17 0.79
Year2to 5 154 2.56
Year6t0 9 1.84 142
Year 10 and above 5.88 4.40

ii) Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts
shown below:

Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2023 For the year ended 31 March 2022
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount rate (1% movement) {C.41} 0.47 (0.35) 040

Salary escalation mate (1% move ) 0.46 (0.42) 0,39 0.35)

Althoogh the anelysis does not teke account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does not provide an approximation of ihe sensitivity of the
assumnption shown.

Defined contribution plan

Particulars For the year ended  For the yesr ended

J1 March 2023 31 March 2022
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss towards
i} Provident fund 539 574
1.54 1.50

ii) Employec state insurance

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (*Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential assent in September
2020. The Code has been published in the Gazeite of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been nolified and the final
nulesfinterpretation have not yet been issued. The Company is assessing the impact of the Code and will record any related impact in the period of the Code becomes
effective.
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(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

"% h“"Pal'ty'“‘l.

{a) Nature of relationship and name of related parties

Nature of relationshij Name of related partics Designati
Directors Dr. Adarsh Annapareddy Director
Mr. Srinivasa Satyakumar Gogineni Director (w.e.f 10 November 2021)

Mr. Chandrasekar Ramamprthy
Dr. A.V. Gurava Reddy '
Mr. Nithya Govind

Mr. Hariharanath Buggana

Mr. Anil Knmar Jagirdar

Director (w.¢.f 10 November 2021)

Director (Resigned on 10 November 2021)

Nomines Director (Resigned on 09 July 2021)

Additional Director (w.e.f. 01 June 2021) (Resigned on 09 July 2021)
Additional Director (w.e.f 01 June 2021) (Resigned on 09 July 2021)

Dr. Adarsh Annapareddy

Mr. Gaurav Dutt Trivedi

Mr. Kriti Agarwal

Mr, Nagendra Kumar Gopavarapu

Key managerial personnel KMP)

Chief Executive Officer (w.e.f 31 March 2023)
Company Secretary (Resigned on 31 May 2022)
Company Secretary (w.e.f 31 March 2023}
Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f 31 March 2023)

Ultimate Holding Company (w.e.f01 April 2022) Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

Holding Company Sarvejana Healthcare Private Limited

Fellow Subsidiary (w.e.f 01 April 2022)

KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

Relative of KMP Dr. A. V. Gurava Reddy - Father of Dr. Adarsh Annapareddy
Dr. Bhavani Annapareddy - Mother of Dr, Adarsh Annapareddy
Dr. Kushal Ravindra Hippalgaonkar - Brother-in-law of Dr. Adarsh Annapareddy
Ms. Harsha Jakkula - Spouse of Dr. Adarsh Annapareddy

(b) Transactions with related parties

Pariiculars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

3 Loans taken

Sarvejana Healtheare Private Limited 67.50 561.27
ik Repayment of loans iaken

Sarvejana Healthcare Private Limited T47.65 236,71
fit. Interest expense on loans taken

Sarvejana Healihcare Private Limited 3933 42,69
iv. Payment of iuterest (net of TDS)

Sarvejana Healthcare Private Limited 73.82 49,48
v, Consultancy charges to KMP

Dr. Adarsh Annapareddy 8.30 5.54
vih Consultancy charges to relative of KMP

Dr. Bhavani Annapareddy 3.55 3.04

Dr. Kushal Ravindm Hippalgaonkar 0,60 349

Dr. AY. Gurava Reddy 42.00 -
vii. Legal and professionsl charpes to relative of KMP

Ms. Harsha Jakkula - 0.60
viil.  Saleof Geods

Sarvejana Healthcare Private Limited 047 8.59
ix. Tests and investigations

Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 0.01 -

KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited 0.1 -
I Purchase of Goods

Sarvejana Healthears Private Limited 098 26.93

Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 1.57 -
xi. Issue of 0.01% optionally convertible redeemable preference shares

Sarvejana Healthcare Private Limited 600,00 -
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N

(© The balances receivables from and payable to related parties

, For the year eaded For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 Murch 2022
i. Trade payables

Dr. Adarsh Annapareddy - 0.0

Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 541 -

Dr. A V. Gurava Reddy 73 -

Sarvejana Healthcare Private Limited 0.04 -
il Unsecured Loaus payable

Sarvejana Healthcare Private Limited 50.00 73015
il Interest payable

Sarvejana Healthcare Private Limited - 842
Terms and coaditions:

All transactions with these related parties are priced on an amm's length basis and sesulting outstanding receivables and payables including financial assets and financial liabilities balances

are settled in cash within 4 range of 30-120 days of the transaction date. None of the balances are secured.
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29  Earninps per share (EPS)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Earnings
Profit for the year attributable to equity sharcholders £7.31 171,38
Profit considered for EPS calculation 87.81 171.38
Shares
Number shares at the beginning of the year 9,010,000 9.010,000
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year . . 9,010,000 9,010,000
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year - Basic 9,010,000 9,010,000
Weighted average number of equity shares arising out of issue of potential equity shares 17,616,438 -
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year - Diluted 26,626,438 9,010,000
Eamings per equity share of par value Rs. 10 - Basic (Rs.) 9.75 19.02
Eamings per equity share of par value Rs. 10 - Diluted (Rs.) 3.30 19.02

30 Segment information

3l

The Director of the Company takes decision in respect of allocation of resources and assesses the performance basis the report/ information provided by functional
heads and are thus considered to be Chief Operating Decision Maker.

Based on the Company's business model, medical and healtheare services have been considered as a single business ssgment for the purpose of making decision on
allocation of resources and assessing its performance. Accordingly, there are no separate reportable segments in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108
*Operating segment” and hence, there are no additional disclosures 1o be provided other than those already provided in the Standatone Financials Statements. Presently,
the Company’s operations are predominantly confined in India. There are no individual customer contributing more than 10% of Company's total revenue. All non-
current assets olher than financial instruments, deferred tax assets, post-employment benefit assets of the Company are located in India.

Dae to Micro and Small Enterprises .

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small
Enterprises should mention in their cormespondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as aflocated after filing of the Memorandum.
Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amount payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2023 has been made in the standalons financial statements based on
information received and available with the Company. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the
provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("The MSMED Act’) is not expected to be material, The Company has not received
any claim for interest from any supplier.

Pa.'l"ticulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small supplies as at end of the year
- Principal 5.93 -
- Interest - .

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Seciion 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterpriscs
Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the - -
appointed day during each accounting year,

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act;

The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and 2 :
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the

interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enferprises for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible = :
diture under Section 23 of the MSMED Act.
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Consequent to the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company has made contributions as stated below. The same is in line
32 with activities specified in Schedule IIT of the Companies Act, 2013 and activities approved by the CSR committee:

. For the year ended  For the year ended
S 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 1.38 -
b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 1.38 -
¢} Amount spent during the year ending on 31 March 2023; In cash Yet to be paid in cash Toial
i} Construction/acquisition of any assel - -
ii} On purposes other than (i) above - 138

d) Amount spent during the year ending on 31 March 2022: In cash Yet to be paid in cash Total
i} Construction/acquisition of eny asset - -
ii} On purposes other than (i) above - -
For the year ended”  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

€} Details r¢lated to spent / unspent obligations:

iy Coniribution to Public Trust - -
ii) Contribution to Charitable Trust 1.38 -
iif) Unspent amount in relation to: - =
- Ongoing project - -
- Other than ongoing project B - -
138 -

33 Capital management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to mainiain investor and creditor confidence and to sustain future development of the
business. Management monitors capital on the besis of return on capital employed as well as the * net debt’ 1o 'otal equity' ratio,

* For this purpose, net debt is defined as total bomowings, less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity comprises all components of equity.

The Company's net debt to equity ratio as of 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 was as follows:

Particulars * As at Asat
31 March 2023 3 March 2022
Total borrowings 50.00 730.15
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 22,19 24.03
Adjusted net debt 27.81 706,12
Total equity 69736 838
Net debt to equity ratio - Geariag Ratie 3.99% 8229.84%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for menaging capital during and for yc:nr ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022;.
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34  Fimsucial instruments : Fair value and risk management

A, Accounting classification and fair values

As at 31 March 2023 .
Carrying value Fair Value Lt
Financial assets at amortised cost (Refer note below)
Trade receivables 54.44 54.44
Cash and cash equivalents 2219 22.1%
Other financial assets 20.44 20.44
Tota) 97.07 97.07
Level 3
Financial lisbilities at amortised cost (Reler note below)
Long-term borrowings 50.00 50,00
Lease Liabilities 508.93 508.93
Trade payables 12007 120.07
Other financial liabilities I 21.43 21.43
Total 700.43 700.43
a3 Dhdareh 3002 - - Fair value level
Carrying value Fair Value
Financial wssets at amortised cost (Refer note below)
Trade receivables 3395 3395
Cash and cash equivalents 24,03 24.03
Other financia] assets 40.92 40,92
Total 98.90 98,90
Financial linbilities at amortised cost (Refer note below) e
Long-ierm borrowings 730.1% 73015
Lease liabilities 09.78 509,78
Trade paysbles 174.72 174.72
Ohher financial liabilities 64.73 64.73
Total 1,479.38 1,479.38

The camying amounts of trade veceivables, trade payables, other financials assets, other financial liabilities, cash and cash equivalents and bank balances
other than cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-tenn nature,

The fair values of long-term borrowings and lease liabilities are based on discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate. They are classified as
level 3 fair value hierarchy due te the use of unobservable inputsincluding own credit nisk.

B. Financial risk management
The Company’s activities expose it 1o a variety of financial risks: credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk.

(i) Risk mansgement framework

The Company’s Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The
Board of Directors has established the risk management committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management
policies. The committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities.

The Company's risk management policics are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and
controls to monitor risks and adherence to timits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and Company’s activities. The Company, through its treining and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which atl the employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Company’s Board of Direclors oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk masiagement policies and procedures and
reviews the adequacy of risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Board of Directors is assisted in its oversight
role by the intemal audit, Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and provedures, the results of which are
reported to the Board of Directors.

() Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not met its obligation under a financial instrument or customer coniract, leading to financial loss. The
credit rigk arises principally from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables and coniract assets) and from its investing activities, including
depasits with banks and financial institutions and other financial instraments. The carrying smounts of financial assets represent the maximom credit
risk exposure, . '

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits to whom credit has been granted afier obtaining necessary approvals for credit. The collection from
the trade receivables and contract essets are monitored on a continuous basis by the receivables team,

The Company establishes an allowance for credit Joss that represents its estimate of expecied losses in respect of trade receivables and contract assets
based on the pest and the recent collection trend. The maximum exposure to eredit risk as at reporting date is primarily from trade reccivables
amounting to Rs. 74.92 as on 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: Rs, 52.47). The movement in llowance for credit loss in respect of trade receivables

during the year was as follows:

Allowance for credit losses As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Opening balance : "1 13.97 13.71
Credit loss (Reversed) / added T T 0.98) 0.26
Closing balsnee / L X 12.99 13.97
Trade receivable write off not routed through the above movement | /E:}'./ N 1.26 -
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34 Financial iustrumenis : Fair value and risk management

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine the expected credit loss on the portfolio of its trade receivables and contract assets. The provision
mairix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and contract assets and is adjusted for forward
looking estimates. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due in the provision matrix. Set out below is
the information about the credit risk exposure of the Company’s trade receivables and contract asset using provision matrix:

a

0-180 days due past ~ More than 180 days  Gross trade receivables

TiSGpsst dige due date past due date and contract assels
For the year ended 31 March 2023 34.54 21.63 1875 7492
For the year ended 31 March 2022 28.10 10.41 13.97 5247

Customer Concentration
No single customer represents 10% or more of the Company’s total revenue during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, Therefore the
customer concentration risk is limited due to the large and unrelated customer base,

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent is limited as the Company generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings
i by inter and o (1C credit rating agencies.

.

({ii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company has an established liquidity risk management framework for managing its short term, medium
term and long term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Cotmpany's exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the
maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Company manages the liquidity risk by maintaining adequate funds in cash and cash equivalents. The
Company atso has adequate ¢redit facilities agreed with banks to ensure that there is sufficient cash to meet all its normal operating commitments in a
timely and cost-effective manner.

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounied contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2023:

Particulars Carrying value Less than 1 year 1- 5 years More than 5 years Total
Long-term borrowings 50.00 . - 50.00 - 50.00
Lease liabilities 50893 56.19 243.51 708.75 1,008.45
Trade payables 120.07 12007 - - 120,07
Other financial liabilities 2143 21.43 - - 21,43
Total F00.43 197.69 293.51 708,75 1,199.95
The table below provides details regarding the undiscounied contractual malurities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2022:

Particulars Carrying value  Less than 1 year 1-5years More than 5 years Toetal
Long-term borrowings 730.15 = 730,15 - 30.15
Lease liabilities 509.78 54.1t 236.438 771,97 1,062,56
Trade payables 174.72 174.72 e = 17472
Other financial liabilities 64,73 64,73 - - 64,73
Total 1,479.38 203,56 966.63 771.97 2,032.16
C, Market risk

darket risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrumnent will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprisés three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commaodity risk. The Company does not
have any financial instraments which are affected by market risk,

D. Currency risk
The Company is not exposed to currency risk.
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Tucome-tax
a. Amount recognised in statement of profit and toss
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Deferred tax attributable to temporary differences 27.58 59,28
Tax expenses for the year 27.58 59.88
b. Amount recognised in other comprehensive ineome
Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2023 For the year ended 31 March 2022

Beforetax Tax expense Netoftax | Before tax Tax expense Net of tax
Re-measurement on defined benefit plans 1.30 {0.33) 0.97 10.15 {2.600 7.55
< Recounciliation of effective tax rafe
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended|

31 March 2023 31 Murch 2022
Profit before tax 115.3% 231.25
Enacted tax rates . 251 25.17%
Tax expense at enacted rates . 29.04 5821
Tax effect of amounts which are wot deductible/ (taxable) in calculating taxable income
Non-deductible expenses 0.35 -
Others (1.81) 1.67
Total 27.58 59.58
d. Recogaition of deferved tax assets and liabilities
(i) Deferred tax agseis and linbilities are attributable to the following
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred tax asset
Expected credit loss for trade receivables 3.27 352
Provision for employee benefits 313 263
Carry forward of tax losses (including unabsorbed depreciation) 50.85 $1.39
Others 33.57 2670
Total deferred fax asset 90.52 114.23
Deferred tax liability
Depreciation/amortisation of Property, plant and equipment {43.50) (41.00)
Total deferved tax liability (45.50) (41.00)
Deferred tax asset {net) 4532 73.24
(ii) Movement ia temporary differences
Depreciation/

Expected -

creditloss PTVSONIOr g0, AMOMIRGON oy forward of tax -

for trade ploy assets perty, losses o

. benefits plant and
receivables .
equipnent

Balance a2 at 1 April 2021 345 ine 18.77 (35.42) 145.14 13571
Recognised in profit or foss during 2021-22 0.07 1.46 7.93 (5.57) (63.75) (59.88)
Recognised in OCI during 2021-22 (2.60) - = - (2.60)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 3.5 2.63 26.70 (41.00) 8139 73.24
Recognised in profit or loss during 2022-23 (0.25) 0.83 6.88 (4.50) (30.54) (27.58)
Recognised in OCI during 2022-23 - (0.33) - - - (0.33)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 3.27 3.13 33.57 (45.50) 50.85 4532
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36  Revenue from comtracts with customers:

Disaggregated revenue information

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers;

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Income from hospital services 880,24 914.76
Income from pharmacy 504.46 602,15
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1393.70 1,516.91
India 1,393.70 L,516.91
Quiside India d : -
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred over time $89.24 914.76
Goods transferred at a point of time 504.46 602.15
Total.revenue from contracts with customers 1,393.70 1,516.91
Reconcillation of revenue recognised wiih the contracted price is as follows:
Contract price 1,439.87 1,556.67
Less: Discounts and disallowances {46.17) (39.76)
Tatal revenue from contracts with customers 1,393.70 1,516.91
Contract bal
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As st 31 March 2022 As at 01 Aprit 2021
Trade receivables 3395 75.03
Contract assets 4,55 18.32
Contract liabilities 5.29 20.94

Contract lisbility: During the financial year ended 31 March 2023, the company has recognised revenue of Rs. 5,29 from advance received from patients
outstarding as on 31 March 2022. During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the company has recognised revenue of Rs. 20.94 from advance received from
patients outstending as on 31 March 2021. It expects similarly to recognise revenue in year ended 31 March 2024 from the closing balance of advance from

customers as at 31 March 2023,

Contract asset: During the financial period ended 31 March 2023, the Company has transferred Rs. 4.55 of contract assets as at 31 March 2023 to Urade receivables
on completion of performance obligation. During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the company has transferred Rs. 18.32 of contract assets as al 31 March

2022 to trade receivables on completion of performance obligation.

Ll
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37 Ratio Analysis and its el t

: Agat3l Asatdl March
Particulars Numerator ) Denominator " March 2023 2022 % change
Current Ratio * Current Assets Current Liabilities 0279 0.42 87.35%
Debt-Equity ratio ** Total Debts” Shareholder's Equity 0.30 144.51 -99,45%
Debt service coverage ratio ** Eamings for debis service™  Deb service™ 0.35 0.85 -58.79%
Inventory Turmover Ratio* Cost of Goods sold Average Inventory 11.33 15.38 -26,35%
Trade Receivable tumover Ratie et Credit Salles™ Average Trade Receivables 31.56 27.34 13.36%
Trade Payable tumover Ratio* Net credit Purchases™ Average Trade Payables 6,54 4.96 31.81%
Net Capital tumover ratio* Net Sales™ Working capital® (40.53) (10.27) 294.70%
Return on Equity Ratio®* Net profits after taxes Average Shareholder's equity 24.38% 191.56% -87.01%
Net Profit ratio* Net profit Net Sales® 6.36% 11.80% -46.04%
0 A 0 my

Return on Capital employed® Eamings before lnterestand  Capital Employed" 16.59% 29.07% 4292%
D Debt includes Lease Liabilities

@ Net profit afier taxes + Non-Operating expenses
® |nterest and lease payments + Principal Repayments

“ Gross credit sales - sales retum

* Grass eredit purchases - purchase retums + Qther expenses

© Total sales - sales retum

@ Current assets - Current liabilities

® Tangible Net Worth + Total Debis + Deferved Tax Liability

* Change in business operations has resulted in the change in the ratio.

** Repayment of borrowings and increase in equity during the year has resulted in the change in the ratio.
***Issue of preference shares has resvited in the change in the ratio.
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The Company did not have any long term coniracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. The Company does not have any unhedged
foreign currency exposure as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

Other Statutory Information

{i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

{(ii) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

{iii} The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

{¥) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including forcign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:
{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
{b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficianes

(vit The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing o
otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, '

{vii} The Company do not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessmenis under the Income Tux Aci, 1961 (such as, seurch or survey or any other refevant provisions of ihe Income Tux Aci, i36i.

(viii The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(ix) The Company has not declared/paid any dividend during the year,

The Figures of previous year have been regrouped/reananged whergver necessary to confimm to those of the current year.
Events after the reporting period

There were no significant adjusting events that occurred subsequent to the reporting year.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of \)f/
Chartered Accountants Rajyalakshini Healtheare Private Limited E’J

IGAT Firm Registration No.: 101049W/ E300004
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-

1.1 Company Overview

Rajyalakshmi Healthcare Private Limited (‘the Company’) was originally incorporated on 05 June 2015 under the
Companies Act, 2013.

The Company is a Private company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies
Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at Dr. No 1-7-186 to 189 and 1-7-201 to
205, Paradise Centre, Prendergast Road, Opposite to Parsi Dharamshala, Secunderabad, Telangana, India-500003.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 16 May 2023.

1.2  Basis of preparation of financial statements

a) Statement of Compliances:

The financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023, have been prepared in
accordance with requirements of Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™), as prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule
III of the Act.

All amounts are in Indian Rupees millions, rounded off to two decimals, except share data, unless otherwise stated.

b) Basis of measurement:

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities Bair value - refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Defined benefit plan - plan assets measured at fair value

¢} Functional and presentation currency:

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees Rs. which is also the Company’s functional currency.
All amounts are in Indian Rupees millions, rounded off to two decimals, except share data and per share data,
unless otherwise stated.

d) Significant accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of Company’s financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles of Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
balances of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertajnty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of agsets/fi \ﬁa}j}j&ies within
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available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control
of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e.,
by product type, customer type and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision imatrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The Company wili
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information.

At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast
economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. Refer Note 35 — Recognition of deferred tax assets, availability
of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of
the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date. Refer Note 27 - Measurement of defined benefit obligations, key actuarial
assumptions.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans
operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds where remaining maturity of
such bond correspond to expected term of defined benefit obligation.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the
DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree ofjudgement is required in establishing fair values. J udgements include considerations of inputs
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Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental
borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilitics. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to
pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company
‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates.

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as iessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an
option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies
Jjudgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate
the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the
renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a
significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to
exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant
customisation to the leased asset).

Impairment of non-financial assets

[mpairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal
calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets
or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based
on a Discounted cash flow model (“DCF model”). The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five
years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future
investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is
sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth
rate used for extrapolation purposes.

L3 Significant accounting policies

A. Current and non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based current and non-current classification.
Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria;

i. it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumpticn in, the company’s normal operating
cycle;

ii.  itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded; .

ili.  itis expected to be realised within 12 months-after the reporting date; or _ -

iv,  itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used fo se -e’”habﬂ:ty for at
least after the reporting date.
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All other assets are classified as non-current.
Liabilities

A ]lablllty is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i it is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle;

ii.  itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded; :

iti. it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv.  the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting date,

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities.
Operating cycle

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

B.  Fair value measurement:

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an, asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

» In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair valve measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs. i

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
= Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset . or llablllty,
pither directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). '
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. Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

The Company's Chief Financial officer determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement and for other non-recurring measurement.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be re measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external
sources to determine whether the change is reasonable,

Periodically, the Management present the valuation results to the Board of Directors/ Audit Committee and the
Company's independent auditors. This includes a discussion of the major assumptions used in the valuations,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred. Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values
is included in Note 34 — financial instruments.

C. Revenue from contract with customer

The Company’s revenue from medical and healthcare services comprises of income from hospital services and
sale of pharmacy items.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recogniséd when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

Income from hospital services comprises of fees charged for inpatient and outpatient hospital services. The
performance obligations for this stream of revenue include accommodation, surgery, medical/clinical professional
services, food and beverages, investigation and supply of pharmaceutical and related products.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the fixed consideration adjusted for components of
variable consideration which constitutes discounts, estimated disallowances and any other rights and obligations
as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers and
deposited back to the respective statutory authorities. Revenue is recognised at the point in time for the outpatient
hospital services when the related services are rendered at the transaction price. With respect to the inpatients
hospital services who are undergomg treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date, revenue is recogmsed over
the period to the extent of services rendered.
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Revenue from sale of pharmacy and food and beverages (other than hospital services), where the performance
obligation is satisfied at a point in time, is recognised when the control of goods is transferred to the customer.

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. The Company applies the most likely amount method or the expected
value method to estimate the variable consideration in the contract. The selected method that best predicts the
amount of variable consideration is primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract.
The most ltkely amount is used for those contracts with a single volume threshold, while the expected value
method is used for those with more than one volume threshold. The Company then applies the requirements on
constraining estimates in order to determine the amount of variable consideration that can be included in the
transaction price and recognised as revenue.

Contract balances

Contract assets represents value to the extent of medical and healthcare services rendered to the patients who are
undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date and is not billed as at the balance sheet date,

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment of financial
assets in section (m) Financia! instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement;

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is
required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of Financial instruments —
initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a
customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers contrel of the related goods or services to the
customer),

Other Income

Interest on deposits, loans and debt instruments are measured at amortized cost. interest income is recorded using
the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial liability, When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of
the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the
expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

D. Income tax

The Income-tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit and loss except to the
extent that is relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.
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Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the country where the Company operates and generates taxable
income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to sitvations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss.

¢ In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recoguised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

¢ When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business comblnatlon and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable-profit or loss,

® In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
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Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

Goods and Service taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of Goods and service taxes paid, except:

e When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in
which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense
item, as applicable

¢  When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

‘The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the balance sheet.

E. Property, plant and equipment

Al other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of tax / duty credit availed, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade
discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended
use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it located. Such cost
includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction
projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair
and maintenance costs are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss as incurred,

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost of self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct
labour, any other cost directly attributable to bringing the item to working conditions for its intended use, and
estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting date are
recognised as capital advance and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use before
such date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress.

Derecognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant @nd equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future

economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the de-recognition of an

item of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the

carrying amount of the item and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the item is derecognized.
= /_;_.,:__=-_:__
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Depreciation/Amortisation is provided on the straight-line method, based on the useful life of the assets as
estimated by the management. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect
fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. The Company has estimated the
following useful lives to provide depreciation on its.Property, plant and equipment which are in compliance with
the Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013:

Category of Assets Useful life (In years)
Medical and surgical equipment 13-14

Office equipment 5

Electrical equipment i0

Computers 3-6

Furniture and fixtures 10

Vehicles 8

Based on the planned usage of certain specific assets and technical assessment, the management has estimated the
useful lives of Property, plant and equipment which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule 1T to
he Companies Act, 2013 for the following:

¢ Individual asset not exceeding Rs. 5,000 have been fully depreciated in the year of purchase.
o Leasehold land is in the nature of perpetual lease without any limited useful life and hence is not amortised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. In particular, the Company considers the impact
of health, safety and environmental legislation in its assessment of expected useful lives and estimated residual
values,

F. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are considered to modify the dmortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated
as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Derecognition

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the statement of profit and loss. when the asset is derecognised.
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The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its other intangibles recognised as of April
01, 2016 (date of transition to Ind AS) measured as per the previous GAAP and used that carrying value as its
deemed cost as at the date of transition.

Amortisation

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects
of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry and known
technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash
flows from the asset.

The estimated useful lives of intangibles are as follows:
Category of Assets Useful life (In years)
Software . 3-5 years

G. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

H., Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.¢., the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-
use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies of Impairment of non-financial assets.

"

li) Lease Liabilities
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substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index
ot a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce
inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office
equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents
are recognised as.revenue in the period in which they are earned.

L. Inventories

The inventories comprising of medical consumables and drugs and surgical instruments are valued at lower of
cost or net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Cost includes cost of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis. The comparison of cost and net realisable is made on an item by item
basis.

J.  Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU)
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their presentl:(vallyqﬁg;g.._p_re-tax
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In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow
projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow
projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate
can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products,
industries in which the Company operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor ekceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is
treated as a revaluation increase.

K. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some
or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit
and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is matetial, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a
present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that
cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent
liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will
arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

s ]
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Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution
already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already
paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet
date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction
in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plans

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of a
defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned and
returned for services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The
calculation of Company’s obligation under the plan is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method.

The gratuity scheme is administered by third party. Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling
(if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit
to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods.

The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) for the period by
applying the discount rate used to measure the net defined obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the
then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes to the defined benefit liability (asset) as
a result of contribution and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit
plans are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains and losses in the
curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment or seitlement occurs.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to
past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to
past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss account on the
earlier of amendment or curtailment.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss:
o Service cost$ comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gams and losses on curtailments and
non-routine settlements; and
e Net interest expense or income

»

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the relative service is
provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short term cash bonus, if the
Company has a present legal or constructwe obligation to pay this amount as a result of the pastsampe provided
by the employee, and the amount of obll an be estimated reliably. c“\"\?’ﬁ""\'-ﬁ- \
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Compensated Absences

As per the leave encashment policy of the Company, the employees have to utilise their eligible leave during the
financial year and lapses at the end of the financial year. Accrual towards compensated absences at the end of the
financial year are based on last salary drawn and outstanding leave absence at the end of the financial year.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it
expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The company
recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense, when an employee renders the relaied
Service.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on
the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year end. Actuarial gains/losses are
immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The obligations are presented as current
liabilities in the Balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least
twelve months after the reporting date.

M. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss. The classification of financial assets at
initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially
measures a financial asset at its fair vaiue plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irespective
of the business model.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised
cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash ﬂows while t' nancnal assets classxﬁed and measured at fair value through OCI are held wu‘;hm‘a busmess
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Subsequent measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- Financial assets at amortised cost

- Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI)

= Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

o Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions:

= the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

= the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
losses arising from impaimment are recognised in the profit or loss. The Company’s financial assets at amortised
cost includes trade receivables, and loan to an associate and loan to a director included under other non-current
financial assets. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 34,

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCT)
A ‘*financial asset’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

o The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and
o The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at
fair value. For debt instruments, at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCL Upon derecognition,
the cumulative fair value changes recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit or loss. The
Company’s debt instruments are not fair value through OCI assets,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL. On
initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements
to be measured at amortised cost at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or 51gn1ﬁcantly reduces an accounting mismatch
that would otherwise arise. ,

Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI)

All equity instruments in scoperofilnd AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments whlqh_jare treid for
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election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes
such election on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI; then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to
profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Restated Ind AS Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers
nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not
derecognised. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained. i

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be
required to repay.

Impairment of financials assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

» Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

¢ Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 1135.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.,

The Company considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual p_yments are

more than 30 days past due. / HEA.{
\ “.'\
(Eﬁ HYDE RABN}) m))
|\« /5//




Rajyalakshmi Healthcare Private Limited

CIN: U85100TG2015PTC099232

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in miltion of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding coniractual amounts in full before
taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance js required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective’ of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original
EIR.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s
financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and financial
guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to chahges in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/
losses are not subsequently transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability ar recognised in the
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(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial instruments are classified as a liability or equity components based on the terms of the contract and in
accordance with Ind AS 32 (Financial instruments: Presentation). Financial instrument issued by the Company
classified as equity is carried at its transaction value and shown within "equity”. Financial instrument issued by
the Company classified as liability is initially recognised at fair value (issue price). Subsequent to initial
recognition, such Financial instrument is fair valued through the statement of profit or loss. On modification of
Financial instrument from liability to equity, the Financial instrument is recorded at the fair value of Financial
instrument classified as equity and the difference in fair value is recorded as a gain/ loss on modification in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and
loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derecognition e

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

N.  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered
an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

O. Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by divid‘ing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders for the
period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders of Company by the
weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of
Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

P.  Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating

decision maker. The Board of Directors is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments and accordingly is identified as the chief operating decision maker,

Q.  Corporate social responsibility
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R.  Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the
reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, events after the
Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

S, New and amended standards

The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 Apr 2022. The Company hag not early adopted any other standard or amendment that has
been issued but is not yet effective: '

— Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards

— Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments Classification, Recognition and Derecognition

— Ind AS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment

— Ind AS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted by the Company

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. On March
31, 2023, the MCA, issued certain amendments to Ind AS. The amendments relate to the following standards:

= Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
- Ind AS 12, Income Taxes
- Ind AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements

These amendments are effective from April 01, 2023. The Company believes that the aforementioned
amendments will not materially impact the financial statements of the Company.




